

Corporation of Harpers Ferry Ordinance Review Committee
Minutes of Special Meeting, August 20, 2025

Members present: Kevin Carden, Chair
Christian Pechuekonis
Chris Craig, Taking minutes

Kevin Carden called the meeting to order at 7:09 pm.

Mr. Craig moved to accept the agenda as presented; Mr. Pechuekonis seconded; passed 3-0.

- 1. Adoption of ORC Mission Statement.** After discussion, there was general agreement that the draft statement adequately addressed the need for ORC to be focused on activity assigned by the Council and town officials. All agreed that the statement's membership section should state that the Town Recorder should be a member and that the offices of chair, vice chair, and secretary should be elected by the committee members. Amendments allowing for both of these requirements were added to the draft.

Mr. Craig moved to recommend to council the ORC Mission Statement as amended. Mr. Pechuekonis seconded; passed 3-0.

- 2. Amendments to Ordinance Article 735 to include yard sales.** Mr. Craig presented the draft for section 735.40 and related vocabulary additions to Article 1302 that had passed first reading by the prior council. There was consensus that the draft should be re-introduced for first reading, but changing the restriction from one sale in a three-month period to no more than one sale in any 30-day period. Mr. Carden also noted that the vocabulary additions would better fit in section 735.03.

Mr. Craig moved to reintroduce a draft of section 735.40 regarding garage sales, amending the previous draft to restrict no more than one sale in a 30-day period, and moving the definitions to section 735.03.

Mr. Pechuekonis seconded; passed 3-0.

- 3. Amendments to Ordinance Article 1711 Floodplain.** Mr. Craig reported on the progress of this ordinance review by the prior ORC. Changes to the ordinance, as required by new federal and state laws, were drafted and sent to the Planning Commission. That body would review and then present the draft, along with other required actions, to FEMA and the State of West Virginia for approval. Mr. Craig will follow up with Councilmember Jesse Melton as to the current status of ORC's draft. He will also attempt to obtain an electronic copy of the draft for the new ORC's future use.

- 4. Amendments to Ordinance Article 130 Uniform Removal of Members of Commissions, Committees, and Boards.** Based on legal advice, Mayor Vaughn had requested the former ORC to review this ordinance with the purpose of making grounds for removal more specific. The former ORC was unable to come to agreement on a draft, and the former council took no action. Mr. Carden agreed to take Mr. Craig's draft amendments to the mayor and the town lawyer, to seek their advice on further action.

- 5. Upcoming and future ordinance amendments.** Members discussed several topics that might need future action, including:

- a) Disallowing town councilmembers from commenting during public comment time at meetings. (It was agreed that this would not require an ordinance amendment but instead could be enacted by the council as a policy change.
- b) The Board of Zoning Appeals will likely be asking the Council for guidance and possible ordinance changes on signage (non-business and non-traffic or directional). Recent requests for permits for waysides or special residential signage made evident to the BZA that there is a lack of guidance from town ordinances on this matter.
- c) The Planning Commission followed up on discussions about the Comprehensive Plan update with a request that the town consider an ordinance allowing for transjurisdictional collaboration with the Bolivar Planning Commission. Mr. Carden agreed to bring this matter up to council in his ORC report.
- d) Mr. Craig reviewed discussions by the prior ORC on board/commission membership and nomination processes. This review had been requested by the Mayor. Questions arose that might best be answered by legal counsel. Mr. Carden agreed to bring these matters up to the mayor and to the town attorney.
- e) Mr. Carden noted his long-time opinion that town elections should not be handled by a person seeking town office. However, town action on this matter is no longer required, since the state will soon be requiring West Virginia counties to administer all town and city elections, which will be held at the same time as the WV general election.

Mr. Craig moved to adjourn. Mr. Pechuekonis seconded; passed 3-0. The meeting was adjourned at 9:02 pm.

Minutes approved on _____.

Kevin Carden, ORC Chair

Section 130.01 Removal of members of commissions, committees, and boards


The Town Council may remove a member of any commission, committee or board for cause such as inactivity, neglect of duty (e.g., excessive absences, especially without notification), or malfeasance (e.g., theft or misuse of public funds, assaults or threats made to individuals, falsifying Town information, misusing sensitive and confidential personal information), or to achieve compliance with West Virginia Code and Harpers Ferry Codified Ordinances. The reasons for removal must be provided to the person being removed in a written statement. ~~and the.~~ The person must be given an opportunity to be heard on the matter at a ~~regular~~ meeting of the Town Council before the removal may be effected by a motion and a majority vote of the Town Council members present.

Re: Floodplain Ordinance

From Jesse Melton <jmelton@harpersferrywv.us>

Date Mon 15-Sep-25 15:18

To Chris Craig <ccraig@harpersferrywv.us>; Kevin Carden <kevin.carden@harpersferrywv.us>

 1 attachment (3 MB)

Draft Floodplain Ordinance 8-26-25.pdf;

Chris and Kevin,

Attached is the draft Floodplain Ordinance. Below are the notes as provided with the document. Let me know if this is not what you need.

Jesse

1. The DRAFT has been updated by the ORC to the HF Ordinance format and renumbered to our ARTICLE 1711.
2. ORC also filled in some of the "blanks" and also is suggesting to add and/or remove some language.

TEXT BOLD IN RED AND UNDERLINED = ADDED LANGUAGE

~~TEXT IN RED WITH STRIKETHROUGH~~ = SUGGESTED LANGUAGE TO BE REMOVED

TEXT HIGHLIGHTED IN **YELLOW** = NEEDS TO BE CHANGED/CONFIRMED AND/OR DISCUSSED (*ROBERTA CAN CONFIRM THE WV CODE SECTIONS*)

TEXT HIGHLIGHTED IN **BLUE/BLUISH COLOR** = NEED TO CONFIRM THE ANSWER/BEST ANSWER.....SHOULD JEFFERSON COUNTY BE THE RIGHT ANSWER OR SHOULD IT STILL BE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY....OR MAYBE WE CALL FEMA CONTACT AND CONFIRM. NEED TO JUST FILL IN THE RIGHT ANSWER.....

ITEMS HIGHLIGHTED IN **GREEN** = USUALLY IS A FINE/FEE/MONEY....SUGGEST WE DETERMINE FEES/FINES/ETC. SUGGEST THEY BE INCREASED TO BRING UP TO DATE.

ITEMS HIGHLIGHTED IN **PURPLISH COLOR** = DAYS/DUE DATES/TIME FRAMES.....SUGGEST WE LOOK AT ALL DUE DATES AND TIME FRAMES IMPOSED BY HF (NOT FEMA'S) AND DETERMINE IF THEY ARE ENOUGH TIME OR WE AS THE PLANNING COMMISSION AND OTHER REVIEW COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES/BOARDS NEED MORE TIME.....

TEXT WRITTEN IN BLUE = IS ASKING QUESTION OR WE NEED TO INSERT/DISCUSS/HAVE RE-WRITTEN.....ETC.....

ARTICLE 1711

Floodplain Ordinance

1711.01 GENERAL PROVISIONS

1711.02 INTERPRETATIONS AND ~~DEFINITIONS~~ WORDS, TERMS AND PHRASES

1711.03 ESTABLISHMENT OF THE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA

1711.04 UTILIZATION OF THE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA

1711.05 CRITERIA FOR BUILDING AND SITE PLAN ~~APPROVAL~~ REVIEW

1711.06 SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS

1711.07 ADMINISTRATION

1711.08 APPEALS AND PENALTIES

1711.09 GOVERNMENT ACTIONS

1711.10 SEVERABILITY AND MUNICIPAL LIABILITY

1711.11 ENACTMENT

1711.12

CROSS REFERENCES

~~Authority to enact—see WV Code 7-1-3v~~ WV Code §7-1-3v. Floodplain and mudslide area management; et seg.

(County Commissions)

~~Authority to eliminate hazards to public health and safety—see WV Code 7-1-3kk~~ WV Code §7-1-3kk. Authority

to provide for the elimination of hazards to public health and safety; penalty. (County Commissions)

~~Requirement as part of Land Development ordinances—see WV Code 8A-4-2-~~ WV Code §8A-4-2. Contents of

FEMA NEW STATE MODEL ORDINANCE
2019 TEMPLATE
FORMATTED TO
HF ORDINANCE STYLE AND NUMBERING

subdivision and land development ordinance. (Land Use Planning)

~~Requirement as part of Land Development plan and Plat—see WV Code 8A-5-7~~ WV Code §8A-5-7. Contents of a

major subdivision or land development plan and plat. (Land Use Planning)

~~Authority to enact as part of zoning ordinances—see WV Code 8A-7-2~~ WV Code §8A-7-2. Contents of zoning

ordinance. (Land Use Planning)

And other WV Code and FEMA Code references contained herein.

FEMA NEW STATE MODEL ORDINANCE
2019 TEMPLATE
FORMATTED TO
HF ORDINANCE STYLE AND NUMBERING

1711.01 – GENERAL PROVISIONS

(a) Intent

The intent of this Ordinance is to:

- (1) Promote the general health, welfare and safety of the Community.
- (2) Encourage the utilization of appropriate minimum construction practices in order to prevent or minimize flooding damage.
- (3) Minimize danger to public health and safety by protecting the water supply and sanitary sewage disposal in cooperation with the County Sanitarian, and to protect natural drainage.
- (4) Assure the County Assessor obtains information concerning improvement of real property as required by WV Code §11-3-3a.
- (5) Assure all County E-911 addresses are obtained and kept current to maintain the established emergency response dispatch systems.
- (6) Reduce financial burdens imposed on the residents, real property owners and its

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

governmental units by preventing the unwise design and construction of development in areas subject to flooding.

(b) Abrogation and Greater Restrictions

This ordinance supersedes any other conflicting provisions which may be in effect in identified floodplain areas. However, any other ordinance provisions shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that those provisions are more restrictive. If there is any conflict between any of the provisions of this Ordinance, the more restrictive shall apply.

(c) Applicability

It shall be unlawful for any contractor, person, partnership, business, or corporation to undertake or cause to be undertaken, any development, new construction, substantial improvement, repair of substantial damage, other repairs, or the placement or relocation of any structure (~~including manufactured homes~~) in the Special Flood Hazard Area within (~~sixty-days~~ **(60 days)** _____) unless a floodplain determination has been made from the Floodplain Administrator, a floodplain permit application has been completed and an approved permit has been obtained from the Floodplain Administrator. In addition, where land is partially or fully in the Floodplain is to be developed, subdivided, ~~utilized for a manufactured home park~~ or subdivision or otherwise developed, a site plan with elevation data must be submitted to, and approved by, the Floodplain Administrator prior to any development.

Provision of all other codes, ordinances, and regulations shall be applicable insofar as they are consistent

with the provisions of this Ordinance and the County's Community's need to minimize the hazards and damage resulting from flooding.

(d) Matters not provided for specifically

Where conditions are encountered that are not specifically provided for herein, the Floodplain Administrator shall determine the applicability of the provisions of this Ordinance in accordance with its intent and shall require the applicant to take appropriate measures pursuant to such determination.

1711.02 - INTERPRETATIONS AND DEFINITIONS WORDS, TERMS AND PHRASES

For the purposes of the Article, the rules and definitions given in Article 1302 shall apply. The following definitions are added for use in this Article.

Definitions Words, Terms, and Phrases

General

Unless specifically defined below, words and phrases used in this Ordinance shall be interpreted so as to give this Ordinance it's most reasonable application.

Adjacent Property. Adjacent Property includes any surface tract, regardless of whether such surface tract is entirely within (The Corporation of Harpers Ferry), so long as a portion of said surface tract is located within (The Corporation of Harpers Ferry), which shares an immediate and common boundary up or down stream to the property that is the subject of the application for Floodplain Permit. Adjacent property also includes all other property that may be affected by flooding.

Advisory Flood Height. The water surface elevation (WSEL), in feet, of the 1% annual chance (100-year) flood at a given location, as determined using hydrology and hydraulics (H&H) analysis and the best available elevation data.

Adversely Affect Adjacent Properties. To adversely affect a property the increase in the elevation of the 100-year base flood elevation must be more than 1 foot at any point. Stated conversely, if the effect is that the 100-year flood base flood elevation rises 1 foot or less the property is not “affected”. This standard does not apply to the Floodway. If prior permit(s) has/have been approved in the same area of the Floodplain, the above definition would include the cumulative impact to the base flood elevation.

Appurtenant Structure. A secondary structure on the same parcel of property as the principal structure, the use of which is incidental and shall not be habitable but shall be used only for storage in association with the principal structure on said property. This does not include a gas or liquid storage tank.

Base Flood. Means the flood having a one percent (1%) chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year.

Base Flood Elevation (BFE). The water surface elevation of the base flood in relation to the datum specified on the County’s Flood Insurance Rate Map. For the purposes of this Ordinance, the one hundred (100) year flood or 1% or greater chance of flooding in any given year. (See 100-year flood also)

Basement. Any area of the building having its floor sub grade (below ground level) **on all sides.**

Certificate of Compliance. A certification that the entire development, including the elevation of fill or the lowest floor of a structure is in compliance with all the provisions of this Ordinance.

Compensatory storage. An artificially excavated, hydraulically equivalent volume of storage within the special flood hazard area used to balance the loss of natural flood storage when artificial fill or structures are placed within the special flood hazard area.

Contractor. (~~As per~~ W.Va. Code §21-11-3(c)). A person who in any capacity for compensation, other than as an employee of another, undertakes, offers to undertake, purports to have the capacity to undertake, or submits a bid to construct, alter, repair, add to, subtract from, improve, move, wreck or demolish any building, highway, road, railroad, structure or excavation associated with a project, development or improvement, or to do any part thereof, including the erection of scaffolding or other structures or works in connection therewith, where the cost of undertaking is two thousand five hundred dollars or more. Contractor includes a construction manager who performs management and counseling services on a construction project for a professional fee.

Contractor does not include:

- a. One who merely furnishes materials or supplies without fabricating or consuming them in the construction project;
- b. A person who personally performs construction work on the site of real property which the person owns or leases whether for commercial or residential purposes;
- c. A person who is licensed or registered as a professional and who functions under the control

of any other licensing or regulatory board, whose primary business is real estate sales, appraisal, development, management and maintenance, who acting in his respective professional capacity and any employee of such professional, acting in the course of his employment, performs any work which may be considered to be performing contracting work;

- d. A pest control operator licensed under the provisions of W.Va. Code §19- 16A-7(a) to engage in the application of pesticides for hire, unless the operator also performs structural repairs exceeding one thousand dollars on property treated for insect pests; or
- e. A corporation, limited liability corporation, partnership or sole proprietorship whose primary purpose is to prepare construction plans and specifications used by the contractors defined in this section and who employs a full time registered architect licensed to practice in this State or a registered professional engineer licensed to practice in this State. Contractor also does not include employees of such corporation, partnership or sole proprietorship.

Critical Facility. Any facility in which even a slight chance of flooding is too great a threat.

Typical critical facilities include hospitals, fire stations, police stations, storage of critical records, and similar facilities. These should be given special consideration when formulating regulatory alternatives and floodplain management plans. A critical facility should not be located in a special flood hazard area if at all possible. If a critical facility must be located in a special flood hazard area it should be provided a higher level of protection so that it can continue to function and provide services during a flood.

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

Development. Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real property, including but not limited to buildings or other structure, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations, oil/gas well sites, pads, pits, retention ponds or storage of equipment or materials.

Flood. A general and temporary inundation of water in an area of normally dry land.

Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM). The official map on which the Federal Emergency Management Agency (**FEMA**) has delineated both the special flood hazard areas and the risk premium zones applicable to (**The Corporation of Harpers Ferry**). A FIRM that has been made available digitally is called a Digital Flood Insurance Rate Map (DFIRM).

Flood Insurance Study. The official report in which the Federal Emergency Management Agency (**FEMA**) has provided flood profiles, floodway information, and water surface elevations.

Floodplain. a) A relatively flat or low land area adjoining a river, stream, or watercourse which is subject to partial or complete inundation; b) An area subject to the unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source.

Floodplain Administrator. The Floodplain Administrator shall be a resident of West Virginia and/or a person who has completed within one year of ~~his~~ **their** appointment the State/FEMA sponsored NFIP Class 273 entitled "Managing Floodplain Development" and remain current with State required continuing education training pursuant to **W.Va. Code § 15-5-20(a)**. I

174
175 n the absence of a formally appointed Floodplain Administrator the duties set forth in this Ordinance
176 for the Floodplain Administrator shall be temporarily fulfilled by the President of the **Planning**
177 **Commission or their Designee** ~~County Commission if within the County's jurisdiction or the Mayor.~~

178
179 **Floodway.** The channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land area that must be
180 reserved to discharge the base flood without increasing the water surface elevation of that flood more
181 than one foot at any point.

182
183 **Flood Proofing (NON-RESIDENTIAL ONLY).** Any combination of structural and non-structural additions,
184 changes or adjustments to structures which reduce or eliminate flood damage to real property or
185 improved real property, water and sanitary facilities, structures and its contents.

186
187 **Freeboard.** A factor of safety usually expressed in feet above a flood level or BFE for purposes of
188 floodplain management. Freeboard tends to compensate for unknown factors that may contribute
189 uncertainty to flood heights of any given flood and floodway condition, such as wave action, blockage
190 at stream crossings, and increased runoff from urbanization of the watershed.

191
192 **Highest Adjacent Grade (HAG).** The highest natural elevation of the ground surface immediately
193 adjacent to the development or structure foundation. This is primarily used for purposes of insurance
194 rating in approximated floodplains.

195
196 **Historic Structure.** Any structure that is:

- (a) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained by the Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing in the National Register;
- ~~(b) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of Interior as contributing to the historical significance of a the registered historic district of Harpers Ferry. or a district preliminarily determined by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district;~~
- ~~(c) Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic preservation programs which have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior; or,~~
- ~~(d) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic preservation programs that have been certified either:~~
- ~~(i) By an approved state program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior; or,~~
- ~~(ii) Directly by the Secretary of Interior in states without approved programs.~~

Interested Person or Party. Interested Person or Party to include:

- (1) the applicant;
- (2) the owner(s) of the subject property;
- (3) at least one adult residing in any residence on the subject property at the time the

FEMA NEW STATE MODEL ORDINANCE
2019 TEMPLATE
FORMATTED TO
HF ORDINANCE STYLE AND NUMBERING

Floodplain Permit Application is filed;

(4) owners of any adjacent property; and

(5) at least one adult residing in any residence on the adjacent property at the time the Floodplain Permit Application is filed.

Licensed Manufactured Home Dealer. A business licensed to sell manufactured homes in the State of West Virginia as set forth in the West Virginia Code.

Licensed Manufactured Home Installer. A contractor licensed to install manufactured homes in the State of West Virginia as set forth in the West Virginia Code.

Licensed Professional Surveyor. Any person licensed by the West Virginia State Board of Examiners of Land Surveyors to engage in the practice of land surveying as defined in the West Virginia Code.

Lowest Adjacent Grade (LAG). Lowest natural elevation of the ground surface immediately adjacent to the proposed development or structure foundation. The primary use of the LAG is to determine whether the structure is located within a special flood hazard area by comparing it to the base flood elevation.

Lowest Floor. The lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement). An unfinished enclosure constructed with flood resistant materials as defined in FEMA Technical Bulletin 2-93 (FIA-TB-2) and usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access or storage in an area other than a basement area is not considered a building's lowest floor; Provided, that such enclosure has proper flood openings and is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the applicable non-elevation design

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

requirements of this Ordinance.

Manufactured Home. A structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is built on a permanent chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when connected to the required utilities. The term “manufactured home” does not include a “recreational vehicle”. **Manufactured Homes and Mobile Homes are strictly prohibited within the jurisdictional boundaries of The Corporation of Harpers Ferry, West Virginia.**

New Construction. Structures for which the start of construction as herein defined commenced on or after (insert here date ordinance becomes effective) and including any subsequent improvements to such structures.

One-Hundred (100) Year Flood. A flood that has one chance in one-hundred or a one percent or greater chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. (See Base Flood Elevation also)

Person. Any individual or group of individuals, corporation, limited liability corporation, partnership, association or other entity, including State and Local governments and agencies.

Practice of Engineering. Any service or creative work, as described in West Virginia Code §30-13-1 et seq., the adequate performance of which requires engineering education, training and experience in the application of special knowledge of the mathematical, physical, and engineering sciences to such services or creative work as consultation, investigation, evaluation, planning and design of engineering works and systems; planning the use of land and water; teaching of advanced engineering subjects, engineering

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

surveys and studies; and the review of construction for the purpose of assuring compliance with drawings and specifications any of which embraces such services or work, either public or private, in connection with any utilities, structures, buildings, machines, equipment, processes, work systems, projects and industrial or consumer products or equipment of a mechanical, electrical, hydraulic, pneumatic or thermal nature, insofar as they involve safeguarding life, health or property, and including such other professional services as may be necessary to the planning, progress and completion of any engineering services. Engineering surveys include all survey activities required to support the sound conception, planning, design, construction, maintenance and operation of engineered projects.

Any person who practices any branch of the profession of engineering or who, by verbal claim, sign, advertisement, letterhead, card or in any other way represents himself to be a Registered Professional Engineer, or by using another title implies that he is a Registered Professional Engineer or that he is registered under West Virginia Code, §30-13-1 et seq. or who holds himself out as able to perform, or who performs any engineering service or work or any other service designated by the practitioner which is recognized as engineering, is considered to practice or offer to practice engineering within the meaning and intent of **West Virginia Code §30-13-1 et seq.**

Principally Above Ground. Where at least ~~51~~ **fifty-one** percent **(51 %)** of the Actual Cash Value of a structure, less land value, is above ground. [44 Code of Federal Regulations §59.1]

Professional. Any “professional” including but not limited to a “contractor”, “developer”, “engineer”, “architect”, “hydrologist”, “land surveyor”, etc., acting in any capacity with respect to this Ordinance, must be licensed by the State of West Virginia, when certification or licensure from the State of West

Virginia is so required.

Reasonably Safe from Flooding. Means that during the base flood, or any other known flooding by the Floodplain Administrator, water should not damage structures and any subsurface waters related to the base flood, and should not damage existing or proposed structures. Ways of determining Reasonably Safe from Flooding may be 3 feet above Highest Adjacent Grade, above high water marks from historic flooding, using topographic extrapolation from contour lines or utilizing the advisory flood height data on the WV Flood Tool.

Recreational Vehicle. A vehicle which is:

- a) built on a single chassis;
- b) 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection;
- c) Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck. and
- d) Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use.

Registered Professional Engineer. A person who has been duly registered or licensed as a registered professional engineer by the West Virginia State Board of Registration for Professional Engineers as required by W.Va. Code §30-13-13 et seq.

Remedy a Violation. To bring a structure or other development into compliance with the requirements of this Ordinance, or if full compliance is not possible, to reduce the adverse impact of the non-compliance to the greatest extent feasible.

Special Flood Hazard Area. (SFHA) The land in the Floodplain Area subject to a one percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year. ~~sSpecial fFlood hHazard aA~~Area are designated by the Federal Emergency Management Agency in Flood Insurance Studies and on Flood Insurance Rate Maps as Zones A, AE, AO, A1-30, and A99. The term includes areas shown on other flood hazard maps that are specifically listed or otherwise described in this Ordinance.

Start of Construction.

(The definition for start of construction is to be used only when calculating the starting time for expiration of a Floodplain Permit.)

The date the Floodplain Permit was issued, including Floodplain Permit for substantial improvement or repair of substantial damage provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement or other improvement was within 180 days of the Floodplain Permit date. The actual start means either the first placement of permanent construction on a site, such as the pouring of slabs or footings, the installation of piles, the construction of columns, or any work beyond initial excavation, or the placement of a manufactured home on a foundation. *Although a Floodplain Permit must be obtained prior to beginning, permanent construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling, nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways, nor does it include excavation for a basement, footings, piers or foundations or the erection of temporary forms, nor does it include the installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure. For an alteration, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor or other structural part of a building,*

whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building.

State Coordinating Office. The West Virginia Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management.

Stream. As defined in **West Virginia Code §7-1-3u**, any watercourse, whether natural or man-made, distinguishable by banks and a bed, regardless of its size, through which water flows continually or intermittently, regardless of its volume.

Structure. A walled and roofed building, including a gas or liquid storage tank that is principally above ground, as well as a manufactured home. [As stated this definition applies only to ARTICLE 1711]

Subdivision. Development that includes a creation of individual land parcels for future sale. It does not include development where rights-of-way or easements are obtained and recorded. [As stated this definition applies only to ARTICLE 1711]

Subject Property. "Subject property" includes the surface tract(s) upon which the proposed development is planned and for which the Floodplain Permit Application is submitted.

Substantial Damage. Damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of restoring the structure to its before damage condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the fair market value of the structure before the damage occurred.

Substantial Improvement. Any repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other improvement of

a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds ~~50~~ fifty percent (50%) of the fair market value of the structure before the start of construction of the improvement.

This term includes structures, which have incurred “substantial damage”, as defined herein regardless of the actual repair work performed. The term does not, however, include any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violation(s) of State or Local Health, Sanitary or Safety Code Specifications which have been identified by the Local Code Enforcement Official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions.

Historic structures undergoing repair or rehabilitation that would constitute a substantial improvement as defined above, must comply with all Ordinance requirements that do not preclude the structure’s continued designation as a historic structure. Documentation that a specific Ordinance requirement will cause removal of the structure from the National Register of Historic Places or the State Inventory of Historic Places must be obtained from the Secretary of the Interior or the State Historic Preservation Officer.

Any exemption from Ordinance requirements will be the minimum necessary to preserve the historic character and design of the structure.

For the purpose of this definition improvement is considered to occur when the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor or other structural part of the building commences whether or not the alteration affects the external dimensions of the structure.

Top of Bank. The lines depicted on the FIRM maps delineating each side of a stream indicate the top of the bank. In the field a professional familiar with fluvial geomorphology should document the top of the bank. When a professional is not employed the top of the bank will be considered to be the top of the first significant slope landward of the water's edge when it is followed by at least 50 feet of relatively flat land.

Variance. A grant of relief by a community from the terms of a floodplain management regulation. [As stated this definition applies only to ARTICLE 1711]

Violation. The failure of any structure or development to be fully compliant with all requirements of this Ordinance. A structure or other development without the elevation certificate, other certifications, or other evidence of compliance required by this Ordinance is presumed to be in violation until such time as the documentation is provided. No future improvements or developments can be made to structures found to be in violation unless the development is to bring the structure into compliance with the current ordinance.

1711.03 – ESTABLISHMENT OF THE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA

(a) Identification

- (1) The identified ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area shall be those areas of (The Corporation of Harpers Ferry) which are subject to a one percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year as shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and described in the Flood Insurance Study (FIS)

FEMA NEW STATE MODEL ORDINANCE
2019 TEMPLATE
FORMATTED TO
HF ORDINANCE STYLE AND NUMBERING

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

prepared for (The Corporation of Harpers Ferry) by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) dated (_____) or the most recent revision thereof including all digital data developed as part of the FIS.

- (2) The identified ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area shall also be those special flood hazard areas which have been identified as flood hazard areas by (The Corporation of Harpers Ferry) by use of historic or other technical data and shown on an officially recognized "FIRM or the West Virginia Flood Hazard Determination Tool Specifically Advisory Flood Height data". These areas shall be designated as appropriate with the level of technical data described below and shall be managed accordingly.

(b) Descriptions of Special Flood Hazard Areas

The identified ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area shall consist of the following four specific areas:

- (1) The Floodway Area shall be those areas of AE zone identified as Floodways in the FIS and as shown on the FIRM. The term shall also include any floodway areas delineated by developers in the approximated floodplain and designated as such by the community.
- (2) The AE Area Without Floodway shall be those areas identified as an AE Zone on the FIRM included in the FIS prepared by FEMA for which 100-year flood elevations have been provided but no Floodway has been delineated.
- (3) The Approximated floodplain shall be those areas identified as an A Zone on the FIRM included in the FIS prepared by FEMA and for which no one hundred (100) year flood elevations have been provided.

(4) Advisory Flood Heights

This information is displayed on the WV Flood Hazard Determination Tool. This data may be used (when available) by the Floodplain Administrator to determine if a property is in the Special Flood Hazard Area, also to assist to determine the height in which to elevate the structure as a permitting tool. And is acceptable data to FEMA for a Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA).

- (5) The AO and AH floodplain those areas identified as Zones AO and AH on the FIRM and in the FIS. These areas are subject to inundation by 1-percent-annual-chance shallow flooding where average depths are between one and three feet. In Zones AO and AH, drainage paths shall be established to guide floodwaters around and away from structures on slopes.

(c) Changes in Designation of Area

- (1) Where natural or man-made changes have occurred and/or where more detailed studies have been completed by a qualified government agency, private entity, or qualified individual who can sufficiently document the necessity for such changes; the process to revise the delineation of the identified ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area may be recommended by the floodplain manager and executed by (_____). However, prior to any such change, approval must be obtained from the Federal Emergency Management Agency.
- (2) A ~~C~~ounty's ~~C~~ommunity's base flood elevations may increase or decrease resulting from physical changes affecting flooding conditions. As soon as practical but, not later than six months from the date such information becomes available, the ~~C~~ounty ~~C~~ommunity shall notify FEMA of the changes by submitting technical or scientific data.
- (3) (~~P~~lanning ~~C~~ommission) may identify and regulate new

flood hazard or ponding areas. These areas shall be delineated on a “Local Flood Hazard Map”
using best available topographic data and locally derived information such as flood of record,
historic high water marks and/or approximate study methodologies.

(d) Elevations Prevail

(1) If the lowest natural grade adjacent to proposed development is *above* the Base Flood Elevation,
and the following is provided to the Floodplain Administrator:

- A. elevation information certified by a Licensed Professional Surveyor or Engineer and a
site plan demonstrating that all proposed development will occur above the Base Flood
Elevation **or**,
- B. a Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA) from FEMA removing the site from the SHFA
then the site shall be considered to be outside the Floodplain Area and shall not be
required to conform to the provisions of this Ordinance at the ~~discretion~~ **discretion** of
the **Floodplain Manager**.

(2) If the lowest natural grade adjacent to proposed development is *below* the Base Flood Elevation,
the site shall be considered to be within the Floodplain Area and the proposed structure shall be
required to conform to all appropriate provisions of this Ordinance.

(e) Boundary Disputes

Should a dispute concerning any Floodplain boundary arise, an initial determination shall be made by the Floodplain Administrator and any party aggrieved by this decision may appeal to the County Commission sitting as the "Floodplain Appeals Board". The burden of proof shall be on the appellant/applicant.

1711.04 – UTILIZATION OF THE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA

(a) Floodway

Within any Floodway Area (F1), no encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements, or other development shall be permitted unless it has been demonstrated through hydrologic and hydraulic analysis performed in accordance with standard engineering practice that the proposed encroachment would not result in any increase in flood levels during the occurrence of the base flood discharge. The resultant engineering study shall include a cover letter, signed and sealed by the responsible professional, providing a statement of findings in basic terms. In addition, studies, analyses, computations, etc., shall be submitted in sufficient detail to allow a thorough technical review by the Floodplain Administrator.

Because Floodways present increased risk to human life and property due to their relatively faster and deeper flowing waters the Floodways shall be preserved to the greatest extent possible.

(1) New development shall not be permitted in the Floodway where reasonable alternatives exist elsewhere as determined by Floodplain Manager. In addition to the requirements below the applicant shall demonstrate that there are no reasonable alternatives other than the Floodway encroachment before a permit is issued.

(2) When the Floodway is the only reasonable alternative the applicant shall demonstrate

that the Floodway encroachment is the minimum necessary to accomplish the project.

(3) All permitted uses, activities, and development shall be undertaken in strict compliance with the flood proofing and related provisions contained herein, and in all other applicable Federal and State Law, Ordinances and Regulations.

(4) When small, single lot development (not incorporating significant amounts of fill) is proposed in a ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area for which no regulatory floodway has been designated, a regulatory floodway may, at the discretion of the Floodplain Manager, be determined to be a width equal to the channel of the stream and the adjacent land areas to a distance of one-half the width of the ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area as measured from the top of the bank nearest the site to the upland limit of the 1% annual chance ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area boundary.

(b) AE Zone Without Floodway Area

Within any AE Zone Without Floodway Area, no new construction or development shall be allowed unless it is demonstrated that the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated development, will not increase the elevation of the 100-year flood more than one (1) foot at any point.

(c) Approximated Floodplain (Zone A)

Within any Approximated Floodplain Area:

- 517
- 518 (1) The Floodplain Administrator shall use elevation and floodway information from Federal, State,
- 519 or other acceptable sources when available to determine the elevation above which
- 520 development will be reasonably safe from flooding.
- 521 (2) When data from an acceptable source is not available, the Floodplain Administrator shall review,
- 522 or shall cause to be reviewed; all proposed development to determine
- 523 A. the amount being invested, and
- 524 B. the specific flood risk at the site.
- 525
- 526 The Floodplain Administrator shall then require the applicant to determine the elevation above
- 527 which the development and adjacent properties including but not limited to existing buildings
- 528 will be reasonably safe from flooding using hydrologic and hydraulic analyses or other techniques.
- 529 When hydrologic and hydraulic analyses are required, they shall only be prepared by a registered
- 530 professional engineer who shall certify that the methods used correctly reflect currently accepted
- 531 technical concepts. The resulting study shall include a cover letter, signed by the responsible
- 532 professional, providing a statement of findings in basic terms. In addition, studies, analyses,
- 533 computations, etc. shall be submitted in sufficient detail to allow a thorough technical review by
- 534 the Floodplain Administrator.
- 535 (3) Any development and/or use of land shall be permitted provided that all such uses, activities
- 536 and/or development shall be undertaken in strict compliance with this floodplain ordinance and
- 537 related provisions contained herein and in all other applicable Federal and State Laws,
- 538 Ordinances and Regulations
- 539 (4) Within any approximated Floodplain Zone (Zone A) without Floodway Area, no new construction

or development shall be allowed unless it is demonstrated that the cumulative impact of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated development, will not increase the elevation of the 100-year flood more than one (1) foot at any point. +

- (5) When Advisory Flood Height Data is available, this data will be utilized to assist in permitting and regulating development within the Special Flood Hazard Area.

(d) Alteration or relocation of a stream

- (1) Whenever a developer intends to alter or relocate a stream within the ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area the developer shall notify in writing, by certified mail, (Planning Commission _____)'s Floodplain Administrator, the State Coordinating Office, any adjacent communities and any adjacent property owners of all such intended activities prior to the alteration or relocation of the stream. Copies of all required notifications must be submitted to the Federal Emergency Management Agency. In addition, prior to issuing the local permit the Floodplain Administrator shall require copies of all necessary permits from those governmental agencies from which Federal or State Law requires approval.

- (2) The developer shall also assure (Planning Commission) in writing that the flood carrying capacity within the altered or relocated portion of the stream will be maintained. The Floodplain Administrator may require the applicant to demonstrate that the altered or relocated portion of stream will provide equal or greater conveyance than the original stream segment. If hydrologic and hydraulic analyses are required, they shall only be undertaken by a registered professional engineer, who shall certify that the methods used correctly reflect currently accepted technical

concepts. The resulting study shall include a cover letter, signed by the responsible professional, providing a statement of findings in basic terms. In addition, studies, analyses and computations shall be submitted in sufficient detail to allow a thorough technical review by the Floodplain Administrator.

(3) Alteration of a stream includes placement of temporary or permanent culverts, bridges or other stream crossings. The Floodplain Administrator may require the use of certain “best practice” techniques in the construction of bridges, culverts or stream crossings to prevent damage, loss of stream crossings and localized flooding caused by blockage. These techniques may include, but are not limited to, wing walls, trash grates or requiring openings to be of sufficient size to pass debris and/or anticipated future increases in flood heights.

(4) All new and replacement bridges, culverts and other stream crossings shall adhere to the relevant anchoring requirements contained in this Ordinance.

(5) The developer is required to provide the County a legal agreement detailing all scheduled inspections and maintenance to be performed on altered or relocated watercourses including culverts, bridges and other stream crossings. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to transfer the agreement to the purchaser when the land associated with the watercourse alteration is transferred. A copy of all new agreements shall be provided to the Floodplain Administrator. Failure to transfer the agreement and provide a signed copy to the Floodplain Administrator shall subject the violator to the penalties set forth in ~~Section 8.4~~ **Section 1711.08** **(d)** of this Ordinance.

(6) When any watercourse alteration has occurred, the applicant ~~must~~ **shall** submit any **and all** maps, computations ~~or~~ **and** other material required by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) to revise the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) and/or Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM), when

notified by the Floodplain Administrator, and ~~must~~ shall pay any fees or other costs assessed by FEMA for this purpose.

(a) Floodway

Within any Floodway Area (F1), no encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements, or other development shall be permitted unless it has been demonstrated through hydrologic and hydraulic analysis performed in accordance with standard engineering practice that the proposed encroachment would not result in any increase in flood levels during the occurrence of the base flood discharge. The resultant engineering study shall include a cover letter, signed and sealed by the responsible professional, providing a statement of findings in basic terms. In addition, studies, analyses, computations, etc., shall be submitted in sufficient detail to allow a thorough technical review by the Floodplain Administrator.

Because Floodways present increased risk to human life and property due to their relatively faster and deeper flowing waters the Floodways shall be preserved to the greatest extent possible.

- a. New development shall not be permitted in the Floodway where reasonable alternatives exist elsewhere as determined by Floodplain Manager. In addition to the requirements below the applicant shall demonstrate that there are no reasonable alternatives other than the Floodway encroachment before a permit is issued.
- b. When the Floodway is the only reasonable alternative the applicant shall demonstrate that the Floodway encroachment is the minimum necessary to accomplish the project.
- c. All permitted uses, activities, and development shall be undertaken in strict compliance with the flood proofing and related provisions contained herein, and in all other

applicable Federal and State Law, Ordinances and Regulations.

- d. When small, single lot development (not incorporating significant amounts of fill) is proposed in a special flood hazard areas for which no regulatory floodway has been designated, a regulatory floodway may, at the discretion of the Floodplain Manager, be determined to be a width equal to the channel of the stream and the adjacent land areas to a distance of one-half the width of the special flood hazard area as measured from the top of the bank nearest the site to the upland limit of the 1% annual chance special flood hazard area boundary.

(b) AE Zone Without Floodway Area

Within any AE Zone Without Floodway Area, no new construction or development shall be allowed unless it is demonstrated that the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated development, will not increase the elevation of the 100-year flood more than one (1) foot at any point.

(c) Approximated Floodplain (Zone A)

Within any Approximated Floodplain Area:

- a. The Floodplain Administrator shall use elevation and floodway information from Federal, State, or other acceptable sources when available to determine the elevation above which development will be reasonably safe from flooding.

- b. When data from an acceptable source is not available, the Floodplain Administrator shall review, or shall cause to be reviewed; all proposed development to determine (1) the amount being invested and (2) the specific flood risk at the site. The Floodplain Administrator shall then require the applicant to determine the elevation above which the development and adjacent properties including but not limited to existing buildings will be reasonably safe from flooding using hydrologic and hydraulic analyses or other techniques. When hydrologic and hydraulic analyses are required, they shall only be prepared by a registered professional engineer who shall certify that the methods used correctly reflect currently accepted technical concepts. The resulting study shall include a cover letter, signed by the responsible professional, providing a statement of findings in basic terms. In addition, studies, analyses, computations, etc. shall be submitted in sufficient detail to allow a thorough technical review by the Floodplain Administrator.
- c. Any development and/or use of land shall be permitted provided that all such uses, activities and/or development shall be undertaken in strict compliance with this floodplain ordinance and related provisions contained herein and in all other applicable Federal and State Laws, Ordinances and Regulations.
- d. Within any approximated Floodplain Zone (Zone A) without Floodway Area, no new construction or development shall be allowed unless it is demonstrated that the cumulative impact of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated development, will not increase the elevation of the 100-year flood more than one (1) foot at any point. +
- e. When Advisory Flood Height Data is available, this data will be utilized to assist in permitting and regulating development within the Special Flood Hazard Area.

(d) Alteration or relocation of a stream

- a. Whenever a developer intends to alter or relocate a stream within the special flood hazard area the developer shall notify in writing, by certified mail, (The Corporation of Harpers Ferry)'s Floodplain Administrator, the State Coordinating Office, any adjacent communities and any adjacent property owners of all such intended activities prior to the alteration or relocation of the stream. Copies of all required notifications must be submitted to the Federal Emergency Management Agency. In addition, prior to issuing the local permit the Floodplain Administrator shall require copies of all necessary permits from those governmental agencies from which Federal or State Law requires approval
- b. The developer shall also assure (Planning Commission) in writing that the flood carrying capacity within the altered or relocated portion of the stream will be maintained. The Floodplain Administrator may require the applicant to demonstrate that the altered or relocated portion of stream will provide equal or greater conveyance than the original stream segment. If hydrologic and hydraulic analyses are required, they shall only be undertaken by a registered professional engineer, who shall certify that the methods used correctly reflect currently accepted technical concepts. The resulting study shall include a cover letter, signed by the responsible professional, providing a statement of findings in basic terms. In addition, studies, analyses and computations shall be submitted in sufficient detail to allow a thorough technical review by the Floodplain Administrator.

- 678 c. Alteration of a stream includes placement of temporary or permanent culverts, bridges
679 or other stream crossings. The Floodplain Administrator may require the
680 use of certain “best practice” techniques in the construction of bridges, culverts or
681 stream crossings to prevent damage, loss of stream crossings and localized flooding
682 caused by blockage. These techniques may include, but are not limited to, wing walls,
683 trash grates or requiring openings to be of sufficient size to pass debris and/or
684 anticipated future increases in flood heights.
- 685 d. All new and replacement bridges, culverts and other stream crossings shall adhere to
686 the relevant anchoring requirements contained in this Ordinance.
- 687 e. The developer is required to provide the County a legal agreement detailing all
688 scheduled inspections and maintenance to be performed on altered or relocated
689 watercourses including culverts, bridges and other stream crossings. It shall be the
690 responsibility of the applicant to transfer the agreement to the purchaser when the
691 land associated with the watercourse alteration is transferred. A copy of all new
692 agreements shall be provided to the Floodplain Administrator. Failure to transfer the
693 agreement and provide a signed copy to the Floodplain Administrator shall subject the
694 violator to the penalties set forth in Section 8.4 of this Ordinance.
- 695 f. When any watercourse alteration has occurred, the applicant must submit any maps,
696 computations or other material required by the Federal Emergency Management
697 Agency (FEMA) to revise the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) and/or Flood Insurance Rate
698 Maps (FIRM), when notified by the Floodplain Administrator, and must pay any fees or
699 other costs assessed by FEMA for this purpose.

Possible duplicate above to next green highlight

1711.05 – CRITERIA FOR BUILDING AND SITE PLAN APPROVAL

(a) General

A Permit is required in order to determine whether all new construction or substantial improvements are:

- (1) Located in an identified Floodplain, Floodway or other ~~sSpecial~~ ~~fFlood~~ ~~hHazard~~ ~~aArea~~
- (2) Designated (or modified) and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy.
- (3) Constructed with material and utility equipment resistant to flood damage as outlined in FEMA Technical Bulletin 2-93 (FIA-TB-2) or the most recent revision thereof.
- (4) Constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood damage.
- (5) Constructed with electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and air conditioning equipment and other service facilities that are designed and/or located so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating within the components during flooding.
- (6) To comply with **West Virginia Code §11-3-3a** concerning County Assessor “Building or Real Property Improvement Notice”.
- (7) Approved by ~~the Jefferson~~ County Health Department for Well, Septic and other permits to assure facilities are designed and located in compliance with the flood damage reduction requirements of this Ordinance.

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

(b) Basic Format

The basic format of the permit shall include the following:

- (1) Name and address of applicant.
- (2) Name and address of owner of land on which proposed development is to occur.
- (3) Applicant shall provide names, addresses, and valid West Virginia license numbers of all contractors working at the building site, or affidavits stating that work is being performed by individuals exempt from contractor licensing as set forth in **Title 28, Series 2, section 3.9(b) of the West Virginia Code of State Regulations** or the most recent revision thereof, if known at the time the Permit Application is submitted. If not known, applicant shall provide the information within 14 days of execution of a contract with its contractor(s) prior to beginning construction.
- (4) A description of site location sufficient to locate the proposed development including district, tax map and parcel numbers and most recent deed book and page number.
- (5) A standard site plan showing size and location of the proposed development as well as any existing buildings or structures. The site plan shall also show all adjacent roads and watercourses with direction of flow, the lowest adjacent grade to the proposed foundation and/or toe of fill, the Base Flood Elevation and the location of the Floodway boundary when applicable.
- (6) An acknowledgement that the applicant agrees to pay any and all fees associated with the permitting process as set forth in ~~Article VII Sections 7.3 and 7.9~~ **Section 1711.07 (c) and (i)** of this Ordinance.
- (7) An acknowledgment that the applicant agrees to allow The Floodplain Administrator and authorized representatives of floodplain management programs access to the development to inspect for compliance.

(8) The contract required by West Virginia Code of State Regulations, Title 28, Series 4, and all addendums to the contract(s) shall be presented to the Floodplain Administrator for review within fourteen (14) business days of contract signing. The Floodplain Administrator shall keep copies of all contracts or addendums and shall file "redacted" copies of the contracts and addendums with the Clerk of the County Court in the Applicant's Permit Application File. The Floodplain Administrator shall consult with the applicant to redact proprietary and confidential information from the contracts and addendums that are not otherwise public information. Failure to present contract(s) or addendums for review shall void the permit. If a licensed contractor is not involved, or the work is of an aggregate construction cost value of less than ten thousand dollars including material and labor, a brief written description of proposed work and the estimated value will suffice.

(c) Elevation and Flood Proofing Information

All applicants are encouraged to exceed the minimum elevation requirements contained herein. Flood insurance rates can be lowered significantly by increasing the elevation of the lowest floor above the freeboard height required by this Ordinance.

Depending on the type of structure involved, the following information shall also be included in the application for work within the ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~H~~Hazard ~~a~~Area:

(1) All structures, ductwork and electrical connections shall be elevated two feet above the Base Flood Elevation and:

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

- A. A plan showing the size of the proposed structure and its relation to the lot where it is to be constructed.
- B. A determination of elevations of the Base Flood, existing ground, proposed finished ground and lowest floor, certified by a registered professional engineer or licensed professional surveyor.
- C. Plans showing the methods of elevating the proposed structure including details of proposed fills, pile structures, retaining walls, foundations, erosion protection measures, etc. When required by the Floodplain Administrator, a registered professional engineer or architect shall prepare the plans.
- D. Plans showing the methods used to protect utilities (including sewer, water, telephone, electric, gas, etc.) from flooding to two feet above the Base Flood Elevation at the building site.
- E. During the course of construction, as soon as the basic elements of the lowest floor are in place and before further vertical construction, it is highly recommended that the applicant check for error by obtaining elevation data completed by a registered professional engineer or licensed professional surveyor certifying the height of the lowest floor. If a mistake in elevation has been made this is the best time to correct the error.
- F. A finished construction elevation certificate must be prepared by a licensed professional surveyor or others of demonstrated qualification. The elevation certificate must confirm the structure in question together with attendant utilities are elevated in compliance with permit conditions.
- G. A Non-Conversion Agreement shall be signed by the applicant whenever the Floodplain Administrator determines that the area below the first floor could be converted to a non-

conforming use (generally applies to enclosed areas below base flood elevation that are 5 ft. high or more). This agreement shall state:

1. The area below Base Flood Elevation shall not be converted for use other than for parking, building access or for allowable storage as detailed in this Ordinance.
2. The applicant agrees to notify prospective purchasers of the existence of the Non-Conversion Agreement. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to transfer the agreement at closing to the purchaser through notarized signature, a copy of all new Non-Conversion Agreements shall be provided to the Floodplain Administrator. Failure to transfer the Non-Conversion Agreement and provide a signed copy to the Floodplain Administrator shall subject the violator to the penalties set forth in ~~Section 8.4~~ Section 1711.08 (d) of this Ordinance.

- (2) All structures shall be flood proofed to two feet above the Base Flood Elevation (nonresidential structures only):

All applicants shall meet or exceed the minimum flood proofing requirements contained herein. Flood insurance rates can be lowered significantly by increasing the level of flood proofing above the height required by this Ordinance. In order to obtain an “elevation credited” flood insurance rate on dry flood proofed buildings, flood proofing must extend at least one foot above the Base Flood Elevation.

- A. Plans showing details of all flood proofing measures, prepared by a registered professional engineer, showing the size of the proposed structure and its relation to the lot where it is to be constructed.

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

B. A determination of elevations of the Base Flood, existing ground, proposed finished ground, lowest floor, and flood proofing limits, certified by a registered professional engineer or licensed professional surveyor.

C. A Flood Proofing Certificate, FEMA 81-65, as revised by FEMA, shall be prepared by the registered professional engineer who prepared the plans in (1) above, stating the structure in question, together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities are designed so that:

1. The structure is water tight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water from the lowest structural element to two feet above the Base Flood Elevation.
2. The structure will withstand the hydrostatic, hydrodynamic, buoyant, impact, and other forces resulting from the flood depths, velocities, pressures, and other factors associated with the Base Flood.

(3) For Appurtenant structures constructed of flood resistant materials – used solely for parking of vehicles, or limited storage (Appurtenant Structures only)

A. A site plan prepared by a licensed professional surveyor or others of demonstrated qualifications showing elevation of existing ground, proposed finished ground and lowest floor. The plan shall also show details of proposed flood resistant materials usage and the size of the proposed structure and its relation to the lot where it is to be constructed. The location of the Floodway boundary shall be represented on the plan when a Floodway is present on the site.

B. An Elevation Certificate, based on finished construction, must be prepared by a licensed professional surveyor or others of demonstrated qualifications. This certificate or report must confirm that the structure in question, together with attendant utilities is designed so that:

1. Flood resistant materials as detailed in FEMA Technical Bulletin 2-93 (FIA-TB-2) are used in the construction of the structure from the lowest structural element to two feet above the Base Flood Elevation and that all utilities are located at least two feet above the Base Flood Elevation.
2. Hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls are equalized by allowing for automatic entry and exit of floodwaters. Designs for meeting this requirement must either be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect or meet or exceed the following minimum criteria:
 - i. A minimum of two openings have a total net area of not less than one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding shall be provided.
 - ii. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade.
 - iii. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves or other coverings or devices provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters.

C. In addition, the applicant shall sign a Non-Conversion Agreement and notify prospective purchasers of the existence of the Non-Conversion Agreement. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to transfer the Non-Conversion Agreement to any

purchaser at closing through notarized signature. A signed copy of the transferred Non-Conversion Agreement shall be provided to the Floodplain Administrator. Failure to transfer the Non-Conversion Agreement and provide a signed copy to the Floodplain Administrator shall subject the violator to the penalties set forth in ~~Section 8.4~~ Section 1711.08 (d) of this Ordinance.

(d) Site Plan Criteria

Site plans are required for all development, new construction and substantial improvements determined to be located in a ~~sSpecial fFlood hHazard aArea~~ and all proposed subdivisions ~~and manufactured home parks~~. These proposals shall be reviewed by the Floodplain Administrator to assure that they are consistent with the need to minimize flood damage.

The owner or developer shall submit a preliminary site plan to the Floodplain Administrator that includes the following information:

- (1) Name of registered professional engineer, licensed professional surveyor or other qualified person responsible for providing the information required in this section.
- (2) A map showing the location of the proposed subdivision and/or development with respect to Floodplain Areas, proposed lot sites, and fill areas.
- (3) Where the subdivision ~~or manufactured home park lie~~ is located partially or completely in the ~~sSpecial fFlood hHazard aArea~~, the plan map shall include detailed information giving the location and elevation of proposed roads, utilities and building sites. All such maps shall also show contours at intervals of two (2) or five (5) feet depending upon the slope

of the land and identify accurately the boundaries of ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area. A registered professional engineer or licensed professional surveyor must certify the site plan.

(4) All subdivision proposals and other proposed new developments which are proposed to take place either fully or partially within the Approximated Floodplain Area (F4) and which are greater than ten (10) lots or two (2) acres, whichever is the lesser, shall include Base Flood Elevation data and shall delineate the Floodway.

A. When a Flood Insurance Study (FIS) is available from FEMA, the data contained in that study must be used to substantiate the Base Flood Elevation.

B. If a FEMA Flood Insurance Study is not available the required data may be available from an authoritative source, such as the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, U.S. Geological Survey, Natural Resource Conservation Service or State and Local Water Resource Department.

C. If the required data is not available from other sources the applicant shall develop the technical data using detailed methodologies comparable to those contained in a Flood Insurance Study. This data shall be prepared and certified by a registered professional engineer, who shall certify that the methods used correctly reflect currently accepted technical concepts

(5) Where the subdivision or other development site lies partially in the special flood hazard area and all proposed development including fill will take place on natural grade a significant vertical distance above the Approximated Floodplain Area (Zone A) boundary depicted on the map, development of detailed Base Flood Elevation data may not be necessary. In these cases the site plan for the proposed development must show

contours at intervals of two (2) or five (5) feet depending on the slope, and clearly delineate the area to be developed and the location of the ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area boundary as scaled from the FEMA map. A registered professional engineer, licensed professional surveyor or others of demonstrated qualifications must certify the site plan

(e) Restrictions to Subdivision of land in ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area.

Subdivision of land in the ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area shall result in lots that include a buildable portion outside of the ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area and be served by streets within the proposed subdivision having surfaces at or above the base flood elevation of the line defining the ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area limits. All new structures shall be sited on the portion of the subdivided lot that is located outside of the ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area.

1711.06 – SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS

(a) Design and Construction Standards

In order to prevent excessive damage to buildings, structures, and related utilities and facilities, the following restrictions apply to all development, subdivision proposals, manufactured home parks, new construction and to construction of substantial improvements, and the repair of substantial damage, to existing structures occurring in the ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area.

(1) Basements and Lowest Floors

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

- 930 A. Residential Structures – All new construction, relocation, substantial improvements,
931 including repair of substantial damage, of residential structures must have the lowest
932 floor, including basement, ductwork and utilities, elevated to two feet above the Base
933 Flood Elevation.
- 934 B. Non-residential Structures – All new construction, relocation, substantial improvements,
935 including repair of substantial damage, of non-residential structures must have the
936 lowest floor, including basement, ductwork and utilities, elevated to two feet above the
937 Base Flood Elevation; or, together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, be
938 designed so that the structure is water tight with walls substantially impermeable to the
939 passage of water from the lowest structural element to two feet above the Base Flood
940 Elevation.
- 941 C. Openings – For all new construction, relocation, substantial improvements, and repair of
942 substantial damage, those fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor that are usable
943 solely for parking of vehicles, building access or storage in an area other than a basement
944 and which are subject to flooding shall be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic
945 flood forces on exterior walls by allowing for entry and exit of floodwaters. Designs for
946 meeting this requirement must either be certified by a registered professional engineer
947 or meet or exceed the following minimum criteria:
- 948 1. A minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one square
949 inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding, shall be provided.
 - 950 2. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade.
 - 951 3. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or
952 devices provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters.

D. A Non-Conversion Agreement shall be signed by the applicant on all flood-proofed structures and any elevated structures when the Floodplain Administrator determines that the area below the first floor could be converted to a non-conforming use (generally applies to the enclosed areas below base flood elevation that are 5 ft. high or more). This agreement shall state:

1. The area below the Base Flood Elevation shall not be converted for use other than for parking, building access or for allowable storage as detailed in this Ordinance.
2. The applicant agrees to notify prospective purchasers of the existence of the Non-Conversion Agreement. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to transfer the Non-Conversion Agreement at closing to the purchaser through notarized signature. A copy of a Non-Conversion Agreement shall be provided to the Floodplain Administrator. Failure to transfer the Non-Conversion Agreement and provide a signed copy to the Floodplain Administrator shall subject the violator to the penalties set forth in ~~Section 8.4~~ Section 1711.08 (d) of this Ordinance.

(2) Manufactured Home Placement

Manufactured Home(s) and Mobile Home(s) placement is strictly prohibited within the jurisdictional boundaries of The Corporation of Harpers Ferry, West Virginia.

~~Certain unique characteristics of manufactured homes installed in special flood hazard areas pose an elevated risk of substantial damage to property. Therefore, it is required that:~~

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

All manufactured homes to be installed within the special flood hazard areas of (_____) shall be installed by a contractor possessing a valid West Virginia Manufactured Home Installer's License. The installer shall use an installation design engineered to withstand flood hazards specific to the particular home site. Manufactured homes to be installed or substantially improved within the special flood hazard areas shall be installed in accordance with the following standards:

A. The lowest floor, ductwork and utilities including HVAC/heat pump shall be elevated two feet above the Base Flood Elevation.

B. Elevation shall be on reinforced piers on a permanent foundation or other foundation elements of at least equivalent strength engineered for use in a flood hazard area. Installation designs incorporating dry stacked block piers shall not be used in special flood hazard areas.

C. All manufactured homes shall be securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation system in compliance with the requirements of 42 West Virginia Code of State Regulations, Series 19, Sections 10A and 10B as authorized by West Virginia Code § 21-9-1 et seq. The anchoring shall be adequate to resist flotation, collapse, or lateral movement. Methods of anchoring may include but are not limited to the over-the-top and frame ties, attached to permanent foundation elements. Ground anchors may not be adequate to satisfy flood specific anchoring requirements. This requirement is in addition to applicable State and Local anchoring requirements for resisting wind forces.

D. Permanently attached rigid skirts and perimeter wall skirts of brick or block must have openings to prevent collapse and damage to supporting piers. The openings must be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces by allowing for entry and

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

exit of floodwaters. Designs for meeting this requirement must either be certified by a registered professional engineer or meet or exceed the following minimum criteria:

1. A minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding shall be provided.

2. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade.

E. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or devices provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters.

F. Any additions to a manufactured home shall be similarly anchored and vented.

G. Flexible Skirting and rigid skirting not attached to frame or foundation of a manufactured home are not required to have openings.

H. The licensed West Virginia manufactured home installer installing the unit shall perform a site inspection and certify in writing that the manufactured home has been installed to the standards set forth in this Ordinance.

(3) Appurtenant Structures

A. When possible, appurtenant structures shall be located out of the ~~ss~~pecial ~~f~~lood ~~h~~azard area.

B. Where appurtenant structures not connected to the principal structure are to be located on sites below the Base Flood Elevation, the following flood damage reduction provisions apply:

1. Use of the structure shall be restricted to parking or limited storage.

i. Structures shall be no more than 300 square feet in size and valued at

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

less than \$7,000. (Seven thousand dollars).

ii. Floors shall be at or above grade on at least one side.

iii. Structures shall be located, oriented and constructed to minimize flood damage.

iv. Structures shall be designed (or modified) and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy.

v. Flood resistant materials as detailed in FEMA Technical Bulletin 2- 93 (FIA-TB-2) shall be used in the construction of the structure from the lowest structural element to two feet above the Base Flood Elevation.

vi. Machinery, electric devices or appliances, and all utilities shall be located at least two feet above the Base Flood Elevation.

vii. Hydrostatic Opening requirements:

Hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls are equalized by allowing for automatic entry and exit of floodwaters. Designs for meeting this requirement must either be certified by a registered professional engineer, ~~or~~ architect, or meet or exceed the following minimum criteria:

(a.) A minimum of two openings have a total net area of not less than one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding shall be provided.

(b.) The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade.

(c.) Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves or other coverings or devices provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters.

2. In addition, a Non-Conversion Agreement shall be signed by the applicant stating that the use of the appurtenant structure or detached or attached garage shall not be changed from the use permitted, acknowledging that the structure may be subject to greater flood risk and that higher flood insurance premiums may be possible, and that a change in use may require full compliance with this Ordinance. The applicant agrees to notify prospective purchasers of the existence of the Non-Conversion Agreement. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to transfer the Non-Conversion Agreement at closing to the purchaser through notarized signature. A copy of the Non-Conversion Agreement shall be provided to the Floodplain Administrator. Failure to transfer the Non-Conversion Agreement and provide a signed copy to the Floodplain Administrator shall subject the violator to the penalties set forth in **Section 8.4** **Section 1711.08 (d)** of this Ordinance.

(4) Recreational Vehicle Placement

Recreational vehicles to be placed within any ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area shall either:

A. Be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days and,

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

- B. Be fully licensed and ready for highway use. A recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnected utilities, security devices, and has no permanently attached additions. Or,
- C. Be installed in accordance with the manufactured home placement requirements and all other flood reduction requirements contained in this Ordinance.

(5) Fill

(The Corporation of Harpers Ferry) officially recognizes the beneficial functions the Floodplain Area serves in storage and transportation of water during floods. Placement of fill in the ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area is discouraged and should be minimized.

Placement of fill in other areas of the ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area shall be restricted to functional purposes such as elevating a structure. Fill shall only be permitted in the same permit with the related structure or other functional purpose. Placement of fill to dispose of spoil from excavation or to elevate yards, parking lots, or fields will not generally be considered a functional purpose. The Floodplain Administrator may require the developer to provide compensatory storage before permitting fill.

No fill shall be permitted in the Floodway unless it has been demonstrated through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed in accordance with currently accepted technical standards that the proposed fill will not result in any increase in the Base Flood Elevation.

All fill placed in the special flood hazard area shall meet or exceed the following standards:

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

A. Fill shall be used only to the extent to which it does not adversely affect the subject property and adjacent properties. The Floodplain Administrator may require the applicant to demonstrate through engineering reports that proposed fill would not adversely affect the subject property and adjacent properties. When required, hydrologic and hydraulic analyses shall be undertaken only by a professional engineer who shall certify that the technical methods used correctly reflect currently accepted technical concepts. The resulting study shall include a cover letter, signed and sealed by the responsible professional, providing a statement of findings in basic terms. In addition, studies, analyses, computations, etc., shall be submitted in sufficient detail to allow a thorough technical review by the Floodplain Administrator. During permit review the Floodplain Administrator shall consider the following issues that have the potential to cause adverse impact to the subject property and adjacent properties:

1. Unacceptable increases in flood heights.
2. Blocking drainage from the subject property and adjacent properties.
3. Deflection of floodwaters onto adjacent existing structures.
4. Increases to stream velocity initiating or exacerbating erosion problems.
5. Other unique site conditions may be considered when determining whether fill will cause adverse impact to the subject property and adjacent properties including, but not limited to, subsidence areas, karst topography, stream blockages, and steep topography adjacent to the channel.

B. Fill shall be used only to the extent to which it does not adversely affect the capacity of channels or floodways of any tributary to the main stream, drainage ditch, or any other

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

drainage facility or system.

- C. A Fill Site must be contoured to drain properly (avoid ponding) consistent with pre-construction conditions. This provision does not apply to properly constructed impoundments which comply with the remainder of this Ordinance and which are properly permitted by the West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection.
- D. Fill shall extend beyond a structure for a sufficient distance to provide acceptable access. For residential structures, fill shall extend laterally fifteen (15) feet beyond the building line from all points before the start of sloping required in subsection 5 below. For non-residential structures, fill shall be placed to provide access acceptable for intended use.
- E. At grade access, with fill extending laterally fifteen (15) feet beyond the building line shall be provided to a minimum of twenty-five (25) percent of the perimeter of a non-residential structure.
- F. Fill shall consist of soil or rock material only. Sanitary landfills shall not be permitted; no trash or woody debris shall be buried on site.
- G. Fill material shall be compacted to provide the necessary stability and resistance to erosion, scouring or settling. Fill compaction standards must be appropriate to proposed post fill use, particular attention is necessary when fill is being used to elevate a structure.
- H. Fill slopes shall be no steeper than one (1) vertical on two (2) horizontal, unless substantiating data justifying steeper slopes are submitted to and approved by the Floodplain Administrator.
- I. Fill site and fill must be protected from erosion.

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

1. Fill slopes exposed to flood waters with expected velocities during the occurrence of the base flood of five feet per second or less will be protected from erosion by covering them with grass, vines, weeds, or similar vegetative undergrowth.
2. Fill slopes exposed to flood waters with expected velocities during the occurrence of the base flood of greater than five feet per second will be protected from erosion by armoring them with stone or rock slope protection.

J. All applicants placing fill in a ~~Special Flood Hazard Area~~ shall obtain a Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR-F) from FEMA when directed to do so by the Floodplain Administrator before a permit can be issued. After fill is finished the applicant shall convert the CLOMR-F to a Letter of Map Revision based on Fill (LOMR-F) before a Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy can be issued. The Floodplain Administrator is hereby appointed as the designated official to approve a request for a (CLOMR-F) or (LOMR-F), and shall cooperate with the applicant with respect to any requirements of FEMA for requesting a (CLOMR-F) or (LOMR-F), which includes, but is not necessarily limited to, approving said request and executing Form 1, "Overview & Concurrence Form" or other form as may be required by FEMA.

K. The applicant shall submit any maps, computations or other material required by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) to revise the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) and/or Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM), when notified by the Floodplain Administrator, and shall pay any fees or other costs assessed by FEMA for this purpose.

(6) Placement of Structures and other development

All structures and other development shall be constructed and placed on the property so as to offer the minimum obstruction to the flow of water and shall be designed to have a minimum obstruction effect upon the flow and height of floodwater.

A. Whenever possible, structures and other development shall be constructed with the

longitudinal axis parallel to the direction of flood flow and,

B. In so far as practicable, structures and other development shall be placed

approximately on the same flood-flow lines as those of adjoining structures or

development.

(7) Anchoring

A. All structures and other development including stream crossings shall be firmly anchored in accordance with accepted engineering practices to prevent flotation, collapse, and lateral movement, thus reducing the threat to life and property and decreasing the possibility of the blockage of bridge openings and other restricted sections of the watercourse.

B. All air ducts, large pipes, swimming pools, above ground gas and storage tanks located at or below the Base Flood Elevation shall be firmly anchored to resist flotation or lateral movement.

(8) Flood Protection Setback

A. A Flood Protection Setback equal to twice the width of the watercourse channel measuring from the top of one bank to the top of the opposite bank of 50 feet,

FEMA NEW STATE MODEL ORDINANCE
2019 TEMPLATE
FORMATTED TO
HF ORDINANCE STYLE AND NUMBERING

whichever is less, shall be maintained from the top of the banks of all watercourses.

~~Specifically, as for oil and gas wells and well pads, no well pad may be prepared or well drilled within 100 feet from any perennial stream, natural or artificial lake, pond, reservoir or wetland. [See W.Va. Code §22-6A-12(b)].~~ To reduce erosion, natural

vegetation shall be maintained in this area. Where natural vegetation does not exist along the watercourse and conditions for replanting are suitable, high priority shall be given to planting vegetation in the setback area to stabilize banks and enhance aquatic resources.

1. Specifically, as for oil and gas wells and well pads, no well pad may be prepared or well drilled within 100 feet from any perennial stream, natural or artificial lake, pond, reservoir or wetland. [See W.Va. Code §22-6A-12(b)].

B. Necessary public works and temporary construction may be exempted from this subsection at the discretion of the ~~Floodplain Administrator~~ Planning Commission.

C. At the discretion of the ~~Floodplain Administrator~~ Planning Commission the Flood Protection Setback requirement can be waived in whole or part if the applicant demonstrates that it is impossible to allow any development without encroachment into the Flood Protection Setback Area. The conditions shall be the minimum necessary and shall be made only after due consideration is given to varying other siting standards, such as side, front and back lot line setbacks.

(9) Storage

A. No materials that are buoyant, flammable, explosive, or in times of flooding could be injurious to human, animal or plant life, shall be stored below Base Flood Elevation

except for mineral storage properly and wholly within the ground in compliance with other State environmental agency(ies) requirements.

- B. Storage of other material or equipment may be allowed if not subject to substantial damage by floods and firmly anchored to prevent flotation or readily removable from the area within the time available after flood warning.
- C. Due to the potential of masking the natural elevation and making it more difficult to enforce this Ordinance, material that resembles “fill” material shall not be considered “storage” material for purposes of this subsection.

(10) Utility and Facility Requirements

- A. All new or replacement water systems, whether public or private, shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the systems.
- B. All new or replacement sanitary disposal systems, whether public or private, shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the systems and discharges from the systems into floodwaters.
- C. All other new or replacement public or private utilities and facilities shall be located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage.
- D. On site waste disposal systems shall be located to avoid impairment to the system or contamination from the system during flooding.

(11) Drainage

Adequate drainage shall be provided to reduce exposure to flood hazard areas as well as around

structures on slopes within zones AH and AO to guide floodwaters around and away from
proposed structures

(12) Backflow Preventers

Back flow prevention valves should be used for all enclosed structures with sewage or drainage
facilities located in the special flood hazard area Floodplain Area.

1711.07 – ADMINISTRATION

(a) Designation of Floodplain Administrator

The (Title of Appointee Planning Commission President or their Designee) is hereby appointed as
Floodplain Administrator and is vested with the responsibility, authority and means to implement the
commitments made. Upon appointment of a new Floodplain Administrator, the meeting minutes with
the applicable Floodplain Ordinance shall be provided to The State Coordinating Office and FEMA.

Within one year of ~~his~~ appointment the new Floodplain ~~Manager~~ Administrator and their Designee must
shall attend the State/FEMA sponsored NFIP Class 273 entitled “Managing Floodplain Development” and
remain current with State required continuing education annual training. (See W.Va. Code §15-5-20a) In
the absence of a formally appointed Floodplain Administrator the duties set forth in this Ordinance for
the Floodplain Administrator shall be temporarily fulfilled by the President of the County Planning
Commission.

The Floodplain Administrator shall administer and implement this Ordinance by reviewing, granting or
denying floodplain development permits in accordance with its provisions. The Floodplain Administrator

shall also be responsible for submitting all required reports to FEMA concerning participation in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).

(b) Development Permits and Site Plan Approvals Required

It shall be unlawful for any contractor, person, partnership, business, limited liability corporation or corporation, or entity to undertake or cause to be undertaken, any development or the new construction, substantial improvement, repair of substantial damage, the placement or relocation of any structure (including manufactured homes) within (The Corporation of Harpers Ferry) unless a permit application and standard site plan has been completed, and an approved permit has been obtained from the Floodplain Administrator. In addition, where land that is either partially or fully in the ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area is to be subdivided, utilized for a ~~manufactured home park~~ or subdivision or otherwise developed, a detailed site plan must be submitted to, and approved by, the Floodplain Administrator prior to any development.

(c) Review, Approval, or Denial of Permits and Plans

(1) The Floodplain Administrator shall review, or shall cause to be reviewed, all permit applications and plans within 90 days from the Permit Application submission date in order to determine whether the proposed development is reasonably safe from flooding.

(2) ~~Further, the~~ The Floodplain Administrator shall review all objections, comments, protest letters and other writings submitted in opposition of said Floodplain Permit Application and give due consideration to the same before granting or denying said Permit.

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

- (3) ~~-(NOTE YOU CAN NOT USE OBJECTIONS TO LEGALLY DENY A PERMIT –DENIAL HAS TO BE BECAUSE THE APPLICANT DOES NOT MEET THE STANDARDS OUTLINED IN THE ORDINANCE.)~~
- (4) All permits and plans shall be approved only after it has been determined that the proposed work to be undertaken will be in conformance with the requirements of this Ordinance, State and Federal Laws, Ordinances and Regulations.
- (5) The Floodplain Administrator shall not issue a permit to any person or entity who does not possess a valid contractor's license when a contractor's license is required by West Virginia Code §21-11-7.
- (6) The Floodplain Administrator, before issuance of the permit, shall require the applicant to furnish satisfactory proof that such person or entity is duly licensed as a contractor under the provisions of West Virginia State Code. ~~If the applicant is not licensed.~~
- a. If the applicant is not licensed under West Virginia Code §21-11-6 a written affidavit that such person or entity is not subject to licensure as a contractor or subcontractor as defined in §21-11-6 shall be filed with the County Clerk, date/time stamped and filed in the official Floodplain Permit Application File.
- (7) The Floodplain Administrator shall require and keep on file copies of any documentation pertaining to the permit from any other governmental agencies. Whether Federal or State or Local, that requires site approval, this shall be submitted to the County Clerk, date/time stamped and filed in the official Floodplain Permit Application File prior to final issuance of said permit and prior to the start of construction. This information shall be maintained for the life span of the development.
- (8) The Floodplain Administrator shall provide a copy of all permits to the County Assessor as required by West Virginia Code §11-3-3a. and provide a copy of all Floodplain Permits for new

structures to the County E-911 Addressing Coordinator.

After the filing of an Application for a Floodplain Permit and receiving a properly and timely filed objection to the issuance of a Floodplain Permit Application, but prior to the Floodplain Administrator's decision to grant or deny the same, the Floodplain Administrator may, in his sole discretion, hold a public meeting wherein evidence can be taken or given by interested persons or parties. Said meeting shall have a court reporter present to record all testimony and receive all exhibits and evidence. Said meeting notice shall be mailed by certified mail return receipt requested to the Permit Applicant and the objecting person or entity and placed upon the agenda of a regularly scheduled (Planning) Commission meeting announcing the date, time and place of said meeting not prior to 10 calendar days from official announcement. The meeting transcript and exhibits presented shall be filed in the official Floodplain Application Permit File.

(d) Application Procedures

Application for a permit and/or site plan approvals shall be filed, in writing, in duplicate, on the forms supplied by the (Planning) Commission and shall include all information stipulated under ~~Article V~~ Section 1711.05 of this Ordinance.

(e) Changes Revisions to Approved Floodplain Permit

After the issuance of a Floodplain Permit or site plan approval by the Floodplain Administrator or Floodplain Appeals Board, no changes/revisions of any kind shall be made to the application, permit, or

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

any of the plans, specification or other documents submitted with the application without the written consent and approval of the Floodplain Administrator.

(f) Permit Placards

The Floodplain Administrator shall issue a permit placard, which shall be prominently displayed on the subject property during the time development is in progress. This placard shall show the number of the permit, the date of its issuance and be signed by the Floodplain Administrator or the County Commissioners sitting as the Floodplain Appeals Board.

(g) Start of Construction

Work on the proposed development shall begin within 180-days after the date of issuance of the Floodplain Permit or the Floodplain Permit shall expire unless a time extension request made in writing to the Floodplain Administrator and filed in the official Floodplain Permit Application File by the Floodplain Manager is granted, in writing, by the Floodplain Administrator after a showing by the applicant of “justifiable delay” not caused by the negligence or lack of due diligence of the applicant. Any extension of the 180-day Start of Construction timeframe shall only be granted if the permit holder can demonstrate compliance with this Floodplain Ordinance, FIRM and/or FIS in effect at the time the extension is granted. All work on the proposed development must be completed within 18 months of permit issuance, at which time the permit shall expire, unless a time extension made in writing to the Floodplain Administrator and filed in the official Floodplain Permit File by the Floodplain Manager is granted in writing by the Floodplain Administrator. The request for a time extension shall be in writing and shall state the reasons for the extension. When considering an extension, the Floodplain Administrator shall

consider the following criteria:

- A. Has the applicant diligently pursued the completion of the proposed development during the 18 months?
- B. Will the granting of the extension be detrimental to public safety, health, or welfare or injurious to other property?

(h) Stop Work Orders, Inspections and Revocations

(1) Stop Work Orders

- A. The Floodplain Administrator shall issue, or cause to be issued, a “Stop Work Order Notice” for any development found ongoing without having obtained an approved Floodplain Permit. Disregard of a “Stop Work Order Notice” shall subject the violator to the penalties described in ~~Section 8.4~~ Section 1711.08 (d) of this Ordinance.
- B. The Floodplain Administrator shall issue, or cause to be issued, a “Stop Work Order Notice” for any development found non-compliant with the provisions of this Ordinance and/or the conditions of the Floodplain Permit. Disregard of a “Stop Work Order Notice” shall subject the violator to the penalties described in ~~Section 8.4~~ Section 1711.08 (d) of this Ordinance.
- C. In the event that the Floodplain Administrator issues a “Stop Work Order Notice”, the Floodplain Permit shall be stayed pending a determination of whether a violation actually occurred and/or abatement of the alleged violation, whichever occurs first.

- D. In the event of an Appeal on a Floodplain Permit, the Floodplain Administrator shall immediately issue a "Stop Work Order Notice" that shall remain in effect until a resolution of said Appeal.

(2) Inspections and Revocations

- A. During the development period, the Floodplain Administrator or other authorized County, State or Federal Government Official(s) may inspect the premises to determine that the work is progressing in compliance with the information provided on the Floodplain Permit Application, this Ordinance and with all applicable Federal, State and County laws, Regulations and Ordinances.
- B. If the Floodplain Administrator discovers that the work does not comply with the Floodplain Permit Application, this Ordinance or that there has been a false statement(s) or misrepresentation(s) by any applicant in the permitting process, the Floodplain Administrator shall issue a "Stop Work Order Notice", revoke the permit and request a temporary injunction in the Circuit or Magistrate Court of (Jefferson County, West Virginia). The Floodplain Administrator shall notify any appropriate agency or authority if the Floodplain Administrator finds a violation of any non- Floodplain Law, Regulation or Ordinance.
- C. The Floodplain Administrator or other authorized County, State or Federal Government Official(s) may inspect any development covered by this or previous Floodplain Ordinances to determine whether any portion of the development has been altered to be non-compliant with the requirements of this or other Ordinances.

(i) Certificate of Compliance

- (1) In the ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area it shall be unlawful to occupy, or to permit the occupancy, of any building or premises, or both, or part thereof hereafter created, erected, installed, changed, converted or wholly or partly altered or enlarged in its use or structure until a Certificate of Compliance has been issued by the Floodplain Administrator stating that the building or land conforms to the requirements of this Ordinance. Occupying or using a building or premises in violation of this section shall subject the violator to the penalties described in ~~Section 8.4~~ Section 1711.08 (d) of this Ordinance.
- (2) In the ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area it shall be unlawful to inspect and approve a permanent utility connection to any building or premises, or both, or part thereof hereafter created, erected, installed or rebuilt until the utility inspector is in possession of a copy of the Certificate of Compliance issued by the Floodplain Administrator stating that the particular development being inspected conforms to the requirements of this Ordinance. Inspection and approval of utilities in violation of this section shall subject the violator to the penalties described in ~~Section 8.4~~ Section 1711.08 (d) of this Ordinance.
- (3) In the ~~s~~Special ~~f~~Flood ~~h~~Hazard ~~a~~Area it shall be unlawful to install a permanent utility connection to any building or premises, or both, or part thereof hereafter created, erected, installed or rebuilt until a Certificate of Compliance has been issued by the Floodplain Administrator stating that the development conforms to the requirements of this Ordinance. Installation of utilities in violation of this section shall subject the violator to the penalties described in ~~Section 8.4~~ Section 1711.08 (d) of this Ordinance.

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

(4) A Certificate of Compliance shall be issued by the Floodplain Administrator upon satisfactory completion of all development in the special flood hazard.

(5) Issuance of the Certificate of Compliance shall be based upon the inspection conducted as prescribed in this Ordinance and any finished construction elevation certificate, hydraulic data, flood proofing certificate, or encroachment analyses which may have been required as a condition of the Floodplain Permit approval process.

(j) Fees

(1) Floodplain Determination Fee shall be assessed on all proposed development. This shall be a flat fee approved by The Corporation of Harpers Ferry.

(2) Proposed development determined to be occurring in a special flood hazard area regulated by this ordinance shall be assessed an additional fee, payable to The Corporation of Harpers Ferry based upon a set schedule approved by The Corporation of Harpers Ferry using the estimated value of the proposed construction as determined by the Floodplain Administrator.

(3) In addition, the applicant shall be responsible for reimbursing The Corporation of Harpers Ferry for any additional costs for services necessary for review and/or inspection of proposed development. Services include, but are not limited to, professional engineering and surveying. The Floodplain Administrator may require a deposit towards these additional costs. Additional costs may include reimbursement for contracted services.

Due to the increased cost of processing, when any work for which a permit is required by this ordinance is started

or proceeded with prior to obtaining an approved permit the fees above specified shall be ~~doubled~~ tripled. The additional fee is intended to partially reimburse The Corporation of Harpers Ferry for the additional cost of processing permits for work already underway. To more fully recover this cost the fees above shall be tripled for every subsequent occurrence by the same person or entity. Payment of the increased fee shall not relieve any person or entity from complying fully with the requirements of this ordinance in the execution of the work or from other penalties prescribed herein.

1711.08 – APPEALS AND PENALTIES

(a) Appeals

Whenever a person or entity is aggrieved by a decision of the Floodplain Administrator with respect to the provisions of this Ordinance, it is the right of that person or entity to appeal to the () Commission sitting as the Floodplain Appeals Board. Such appeal must be filed with the Appeals Board or Floodplain Manager in writing, within thirty (30) days after notification of the decision of the Floodplain Administrator as announced at a regularly scheduled () Commission Meeting. Said Appeal shall be served by the aggrieved person by regular mail on all interested parties on the date that said Appeal is filed. Upon receipt of such appeal, the Floodplain Appeals Board shall set a time, date and place not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) calendar days for the purpose of hearing the appeal. Notice of the time, date and place of the hearing shall be given to all interested parties by placing an announcement of said hearing date, time and place on the agenda of the next regularly scheduled () Commission meeting notice and to announce the date, time and place of the appeal hearing not sooner than 10 calendar days from said announcement date, at which time all may appear and be heard. The determination by the Floodplain Appeals Board shall be final in all cases, subject to any Appeal to the Circuit or Magistrate

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

Court of (Jefferson County), West Virginia or any other Court of competent jurisdiction.

In the event an Appeal is filed wherein a Floodplain Permit grant has been ruled by the Floodplain Administrator, the Floodplain Administrator shall immediately issue a "Stop Work Order Notice" that shall remain in effect until a resolution of said appeal.

(b) Appeal Review Criteria

All appeals contesting only the permit fee, the cumulative substantial damage requirement, the flood protection setback requirement, or the freeboard requirements, may be handled at the discretion of the Floodplain Appeals Board.

(c) Variances

If compliance with any of the requirements of this Ordinance would result in an exceptional hardship to a prospective builder, developer or landowner, the [Name of Municipality The Corporation of Harpers Ferry] may, upon request, grant relief from the strict application of the requirements.

Considerations for the issuance of Variances to this Ordinance shall adhere to the following criteria:

(1) A decision granting or denying the variance request shall only be issued by the Floodplain Appeals Board upon:

- A. a showing of good and sufficient cause,
- B. a determination that failure to grant the permit would result in exceptional hardship to

the applicant, and

C. a determination that granting the permit will not result in increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, create nuisances, cause fraud on or victimization of the public or conflict with existing laws, regulations or ordinances.

(2) An affirmative decision granting a variance shall be issued only upon determination that it is the minimum necessary, considering the Special Flood Hazard Area, to afford relief. Financial hardship, used as sole criteria, shall not be considered sufficient justification to grant a variance.

(3) An affirmative decision granting a Floodplain variance shall be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of historic structures upon a determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure and the variance is the minimum necessary to preserve the historic character and design of the structure.

(4) The Floodplain Appeals Board shall notify the applicant in writing and signed by a majority of the Floodplain Appeals Board that:

A. the issuance of a decision to allow construction of a structure below the Base Flood Elevation will result in increased premium rates for flood insurance, and

B. such construction below the Base Flood Elevation increases risk to life and property. Such notification shall be maintained with a record of all decisions as required in this Ordinance; and

(5) The Floodplain Appeals Board shall:

A. maintain a record of all decisions including justification for the decisions, and

B. report such decisions issued in its biannual report to the Federal Emergency

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

Management Agency.

(6) An affirmative decision shall not be granted for issuance of a Floodplain Variance for any construction, development use or activity within any Floodway Area that would cause any increase in the Base Flood Elevation.

(d) Penalties

Any person, who fails to comply with any or all of the requirements or provisions of this Ordinance or direction or Order of the Floodplain Administrator, or any other authorized employee of, shall be unlawful and shall be referred to the Prosecuting Attorney who shall expeditiously prosecute all such violators. A violator shall, upon conviction, pay a fine to the (The Corporation of Harpers Ferry) Commission of not less than fifty dollars (\$50.00) or more than five hundred dollars (\$500.00) plus cost of prosecution. Each day during which any violation of this Ordinance continues shall constitute a separate offense. In addition to the above penalties, all other actions are hereby reserved including an action in equity for the proper enforcement of this Ordinance. The imposition of a fine or penalty for any violation of, or non-compliance with, this Ordinance shall not excuse the violation or non-compliance with the Ordinance or permit it to continue; and all such persons shall be required to correct or remedy such violations or non-compliance within a reasonable time. Any structure constructed, reconstructed, enlarged, altered or relocated in non-compliance with this Ordinance may be declared by the (Planning) Commission to be a public nuisance and abated as such subject to other applicable laws and exhaustion of appellate rights.

1711.09 – GOVERNMENT ACTIONS

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

(a) **Municipal Annexation**

- (1) The (**Corporation of Harpers Ferry**) Floodplain Ordinance in effect on the date of annexation shall remain in effect and shall be enforced by the Floodplain Administrator for all annexed areas until the municipality adopts and enforces a Floodplain Ordinance which meets or exceeds the requirements for participation in the National Flood Insurance Program (**NFIP**).
- (2) Municipalities with existing Floodplain Ordinances shall pass a resolution acknowledging and accepting responsibility for enforcing Floodplain Ordinance Standards prior to annexation of any area containing identified Floodplain Areas.
- (3) All plats or maps of annexation shall show the Floodplain boundaries, Base Flood Elevation and location of the Floodway where determined.
- (4) In accordance with the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 44 Subpart (B) Section 59.22(a)(9)(v) all Federal Emergency Management Agency (**FEMA**) participating governments must notify the State Coordinating Office and Federal Insurance Administration in writing whenever the boundaries of the governments have been modified by annexation or the governments has otherwise assumed or no longer has authority to adopt and enforce floodplain management regulations for a particular area. In order that all Flood Insurance Rate Maps (**FIRM**) accurately represent the government's boundaries, a copy of a map of the government boundaries suitable for reproduction, clearly delineating the new boundaries or new area for which the government has assumed or relinquished floodplain management regulatory authority must be included with the notification.
- (5) NFIP participating governments must notify the State Coordinating Office in writing whenever the boundaries of the governments have been modified by annexation or the government has otherwise assumed or no longer has authority to adopt and enforce floodplain management

regulations for a particular area. A copy of a map of the government boundaries suitable for reproduction, clearly delineating the new boundaries or new area for which the government has assumed or relinquished floodplain management regulatory authority must be included with the notification.

(b) Permits for Governmental and Other Entities

Unless specifically exempted by law, all public utilities, religious or private institutions, and Municipal, County, State and Federal entities are required to comply with this Ordinance and shall obtain all necessary permits. Any entity claiming to be exempt from the requirements of this Ordinance must provide a written statement setting forth the rationale for exemption and file the same with FEMA. In addition, the entity claiming exemption shall provide copies of all relevant legal documentation demonstrating the exemption.

1711.10 – SEVERABILITY AND MUNICIPAL LIABILITY

(a) Severability

If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance shall be declared invalid for any reason whatever, such decision shall not affect the remaining portions of this Ordinance which shall remain in full force and effect and for this purpose the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable.

(b) Liability

The granting of a permit or approval of a subdivision, development plan in an identified Special Flood

THE CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY, WEST VIRGINIA
ORDINANCE # 2025 - _____

Hazard Area, shall not constitute a representation, guarantee, or warranty of any kind by the (The Corporation of Harpers Ferry), ~~Commission~~ or (Planning Commission) or by any official or employee thereof of the practicability or safety of the proposed use, and shall create no liability upon the (The Corporation of Harpers Ferry), ~~Commission~~ or (Planning Commission). This Ordinance does not create a private cause of action. All applicants proposing construction in or near a Floodplain Area are urged to locate construction as far away from, and as high above, all flooding sources as possible.

1711.11 -ARTICLE XI- ENACTMENT *(This section needs to be written – need to research other municipalities and confirm with FEMA)*

- **PART 1.06.00 - EFFECTIVE DATE; ENACTMENT**

- **Sec. 1.06.01. - Generally**

The provisions of this Code shall be effective on and after the 1st day of April, 1997.

- **Sec. 1.06.02. - Pending Applications and Interim Authority**

A.

All applications for which public hearings have been convened prior to the effective date of this Code shall be heard and decided pursuant to the terms of those procedures in effect prior to said effective date.

B.

All applications made prior to the adoption of this Code for which decisions are made after the effective date shall be decided pursuant to the term of the procedures in effect at the time of said application.

C.

All applications made after adoption of this Code shall be decided pursuant to the terms of the regulations in effect at the time of the decision.

D.

Notwithstanding the above, more specific requirements of this Code relative to a particular application type shall apply.

Transjurisdictional Collaboration

When presented with a matter adjoining the border with the Corporation of Bolivar, or when the matter will have a material effect on the residents of Bolivar, the Harpers Ferry Planning Commission will inform the Bolivar Planning Commission of the matter and extend an invitation for a representative to attend relevant meetings of the Harpers Ferry Planning Commission as a nonvoting deliberative participant. The Bolivar Planning Commission representative will be recorded in the meeting minutes as a participant, with their comments included in any Harpers Ferry Planning Commission reports and communications to Harpers Ferry Town Council.

Re: Third zoning category

From Zachary Morse <zmorse@harpersferrywv.us>

Date Tue 23-Sep-25 13:04

To Kevin Carden <kevin.carden@harpersferrywv.us>

Hi Kevin,

Apologies, I meant to send this after the Town Council meeting and then completely forgot.

The text that Planning voted to send forward was short:

"Conservation Area - Public land set aside for historical and natural preservation. No new development of any kind (commercial or residential) permitted."

I later realized that we would probably need to also include an exception or conditional use for both NPS and the Harpers Ferry Park Association to conduct limited business within the conservation area to support their ongoing activities. I also noticed that both our residential and business zoning ordinances include the phrase "...in a manner consistent with the goals of the comprehensive plan." That may have to be included for legal reasons connecting the official Land Use and Zoning Maps.

The intent here was to clarify that the land use of the green area on the zoning map as unique from either business or residential.

I would be happy to have myself or Jesse join the ORC meeting where this is discussed to represent the ideas Planning was trying to capture with this definition.

All the best,
Zach

From: Kevin Carden <kevin.carden@harpersferrywv.us>

Sent: Tuesday, September 23, 2025 12:25 AM

To: Zachary Morse <zmorse@harpersferrywv.us>

Subject: Third zoning category

Hi Zach,

You mentioned at the September meeting of the Town Council that Planning could send to the Ordinance Review Committee proposed language for the third zoning category. Do you have that?

Thanks,

Kevin Carden | Recorder | Town Council Member

Corporation of Harpers Ferry | PO Box 217 | Harpers Ferry WV 25425

Cell 304-886-2325 | kevin.carden@harpersferrywv.us

 Be kind to the environment. Please don't print this email unless you really need to!

NOTICE: Email correspondence to and from this email address is subject to the West Virginia Freedom of Information Act (FOIA). It may be disclosed, in whole or in part, to third parties upon FOIA request. It may also be privileged or otherwise protected by certain applicable legal rules. Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information is prohibited by law. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete all records of this email.